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December 27, 2018 
 

    Questions and Answers No. 01  
Request for Proposal No. SHF2019-03/ Sourcing Event # 0000001506 

SFSD Horticultural Training Program 
 
 

TO:  ALL Proposers 
*This document lists question(s) raised by bidders regarding RFP #SHF2019-03 at the Pre-Bid Conference 
on December 20, 2018:  
 
 

1. Will the summer program be at the Hetch Hetchy site?  

No, normally only the year round group will work at the Hetch Hetchy site. 

2. Do all 150 students work at the same site together? 

Normally the students from the summer program will be divided into different cohorts and groups 
to work at different sites and/or shifts.  Agency can take into consideration the student to staff 
ratio, and it is recommended to separate the 18 year olds from the 16 to 17 year olds.  Driving 
time to and from work site should also be considered and planned ahead. 

3. Can the department share knowledge from the past summer program? Are the students paid 
at hourly wage or stipend?   

Yes, the department will share information from the summer program: successes as well as areas 
that need improvements/enhancements.  Agency is encouraged to propose what its own vision is 
for the summer program.  In terms of wage, students should be paid an hourly wage.  The 
training aims to teach the youths expectations at work site and the use of tools. 

4. How are referrals from other agencies incorporated?   

The department will assist in the referral process-prescribed in the RFP, but the agency is 
expected to have some experience with recruitment. 
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5. For the 18-24 year olds group pipeline, are there positions available at the PUC?  

Some of the program’s main elements: (1) a structured, fixed 12 months term, paid, full time on-
the-job training program; (2) entrance into pre-apprenticeship programs to acquire additional 
technical skills that prepare them to be “job ready”; (3) case management, continuing education, 
barrier removal, life skills & soft skills, job readiness programming, resume preparation; (4) and 
pathway access to full-time, permanent employment opportunities, paying prevailing wages.  
Bidding agency can partner with other public agencies/contractors performing work on City 
contracts, other private contractors, entities on the pipeline outcomes.  There are Citywide Civil 
Service Apprenticeship Jobs available. 

6. Is there a previous vendor or RFP for such program? 

Yes. There was one long term vendor before, that covered some of the program elements.  There 
was also a short-term vendor for the 2018 summer program. 

7. Is this RFP only open to non-profits?   

Yes, please refer to page 15 of the RFP.  For profit agencies can partner with a non-profit, but 
the non-profit agency must be the lead.   

8. How do you build community engagement? Will the department have dedicated staff with 
time spent on the program?   

We will have dedicated staff to work closely with the program. A rehabilitations services 
coordinator, a deputy, and captain will be involved and assist staff with the summer program. 

9. Is the proposal expected to give suggestions on approach or state the scope and collaboration? 

The prospective agency should provide a proposal that lays out its best plan to execute the 
Horticultural Training Program.  The proposal should spell out its desired approach, fulfill the 
scope of work prescribed in the RFP.    

10. What is the date for the oral interview?   

No date has been set yet, but it is expected in early February 2019. 

11. Are agencies required to have a C27 license?   

We would not require it but having it would be a plus.  Like a degree, it assumes a certain level of 
knowledge about the subject. This program is more education based so having a training 
background may be better suited for this program. 

12. What is the extend of the background check requirement?   

Certain convictions will not be acceptable by the Sheriff’s Department.  However, we will work 
with agencies on this.  

13. Are administrative costs allowed? 

Yes. Please note that the Sheriff’s Department will conduct the live scan at no cost to the agency. 

14. How do we find out which agency is selected for the RFP?   

Once a vendor is selected, an Intent to Award will be posted on the OCA website. 
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15. Can agencies share information and/or refer participants to the program through 
partnership? 

This is a good idea and it can be built in the proposal. 

16. Can the scope of work be split among agencies?   

This will be a conversation with the selected agency. 

17. Can agencies get the attendees name and contact information for this meeting?   

Yes, the department can send it out to all conference attendees, if everyone is okay with their 
name, agency and e-mail address being shared.  

18. Does the work site have equipment?   

Agency is expected to bring their own equipment.  Port-a potties are required for the Summer 
Program.  For the year-round program, since some locations are remote, port-a-potties will be 
required, but those will be confined to special projects (a week here, a week there) for the year-
round young-adults program. 

19. Is the program for the year round 18-24 year olds a new scope?   

Previously there was no age limit in the year round program.  This RFP stipulates a structured, 
fixed 12-months term, paid, full time on-the-job training program. 

20. Is it only open to SF residents?   

That is not specified in the RFP.  However, it is targeting communities in SF that are impacted by 
the justice system. 

21. What is the benefit requirement for participants?  Will it be more favorable to have better 
benefit than the number of participants?   

Benefits provided to participants should comply with all CCSF guidelines and ordinances. 

22. Length and/or budget of the proposal? 

Please refer to page 2 on the RFP. The length of the contract is from March 01, 2019 to              
June 30, 2022. The total budget is Six Million One Hundred Eighty-Seven Thousand Five 
Hundred Dollars ($6,187,500). 

23. If participant chooses to attend 4-year college after the program, does that consider 
acceptable outcome? 

Yes. 

24. Can agency utilize existing vehicles?  Or is new vehicle expected to be purchased?   

Yes, agency can utilize existing vehicles.  Agency is expected to provide transportation to/from 
field sites to year-round young adults as well as Summer youths (page 7).  For the Summer 
Program, the Sheriff’s department will assist with transportation, but cannot guarantee 
availability.  The agency should include transportation costs for transporting the Summer 
Program participants in the budget, in the event that the Sheriff department is not able to assist 
with transportation. 
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25. Can the department provide maps of the various work sites?   

Addresses of some of the SFPUC reservoirs are available.  In addition to the reservoirs, the 
SFPUC team manages the San Francisco Fire Department Auxiliary Water Supply System 
(AWSS) (i.e. pump stations, tanks).  See potential locations below: 

Facility Location 
Balboa Reservoir Frida Kahlo Way (formerly Phelan Ave, currently used as City 

College of San Francisco Parking Lot) 
College Hill Reservoir Marina St. & Elsie St. 
Hunters Point Reservoir 100 Whitney Young Circle (Earl P. Mills Center) 
Laguna Honda 7th Ave. from Clarendon Ave. to Lawton St. 
Lombard Reservoir 1200 Greenwich St. 
Merced Manor Reservoir 2920 23rd Ave. at Sloat Blvd. 
Potrero Heights Reservoir 35 Aqua Way 
Summit Reservoir 1 Las Avanzada Way 
Sunset Reservoir 2000 28th Ave. 
Sutro Reservoir Olympia Way & Clarendon Ave. 
University Mound Reservoir Felton St. & University St. 
Alemany Pump Station McLaren Park 
AWSS 44th Ave. & Santiago St. Tank 
AWSS Aquatic Park Pump Station 
AWSS Ashbury St. Tank 
AWSS Jones St. Tank 
AWSS Twin Peaks 

 

26. Are donations from outside acceptable? 

Yes, we would encourage prospective proposers, documented non-profit community based 
organizations (CBO’s) to legally solicit donations, monetary or in-kind donations from other 
individuals, companies, entities, in order to operate and manage the normal course of business, 
fulfilling its obligation to maintain 501(c) (3) status certified under the IRS laws.  Past examples 
include gas range for kitchen, tractor, office trailer, vans, etc. 

27. Who will maintain the infrastructure?   

City owned facilities will be maintained by the City, prospective proposer will maintain its own 
assets if those assets sit on City land, examples include cars/vans, tractors, office trailer. 

28. Can the proposal be a collaboration of multiple agencies?  

Yes. 

29. Can the produce be used to generate funding to support and cycle back to the program? 

SFSD is willing to consider income generating proposals from the successful contractor that 
would benefit the training program. 
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30. Can the food be served at the jail? 

This would require negotiations with the contracted food vendor.   

31. Is the farm land certified organic? 

SFSD is unsure of status of certification. 

32. Is there storage for food? 

No. 

33. Is the kitchen certified and up to code? 

No. 

34. Is the water free?  

Yes, when working at CDD properties. Do not know about the other sites. 

35. Is there office space? 

Prospective Proposer is encouraged to rent and maintain a trailer to be used as its office, or 
expand the current office space in the main building by claiming (and repurposing the current 
space dedicated to tools).   

36. Did the previous vendor maintain the facility, like providing janitorial service, etc.? 
 
Yes. 
 

37. What is the size of the green house, nursery, farm and the irrigation system? 

The Sheriff’s Department is still waiting for this information. We hope to have it available by 
January 3, 2019. 
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If you have already submitted a sealed bid, you are required to submit your bid amendment(s) before the 
bid due date in order to comply with the change(s) indicated above.  You must submit this Bid Addendum 
signed and dated in a separate sealed envelope stating the request for proposal number and due date. 
Any bid amendments received after the bid due date will not be considered. 
All other terms and conditions remain the same. 

 

Acknowledgment of receipt: _________________________________________ 

Signature Date 

 

_________________________________________ 

Print Name and Company Name 
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